
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                           

MEETING AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

Wednesday, November 8, 2017 
6:00 P.M. 

MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 
(Tentative & Subject to Change) 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. MINUTES – Review and approval of the minutes from the October 11, 2017, meeting. 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING – CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS  

a)  Case HPC-08-2017 – 107 S. Park Ave. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness 
to Demolish the Existing Home and construct a new home in the Robbins Park 
Historic District. 

b)  Case HPC-09-2017 –  504 S. Oak St. - Request for Certificate of Appropriateness to 
Demolish the Existing Home and construct a new home in the Robbins Park Historic 
District. 

 
4. DISCUSSION 

a)  304 S. Lincoln Street – Case HPC-04-2016 (approved on November 9, 2016) 
b)  Update letter regarding the Hinsdale Historical Society for Historic Tours App  

 
5.   ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend any meetings and who 
require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in 
these meetings, or who have questions regarding accessibility of the meetings or the 
facilities, are requested to contact Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or 
by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons.  website:  www.villageofhinsdale.org 
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MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

October 11, 2017  

Memorial Hall – Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale 

6:00 P.M. 

             

Chairman Bohnen called the meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) to 

order at 6:00 p.m. on October 11, 2017, in Memorial Hall in the Memorial Building, 19 East 

Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale IL. 

 

Present:   Chairman Bohnen, Commissioner Prisby, Commissioner Weinberger, 

Commissioner D’Arco, and Commissioner Gonzalez   

Absent:   Commissioner Williams and Commissioner Willett   

Also Present: Applicant for Case HPC-06-2017 and HPC-07-2017 

 

 

Minutes 

Chairman Bohnen introduced the minutes from the September 13, 2017, meeting and asked 

for any questions. Commissioner Weinberger had two correction requests; (1) under the 

discussion item for the “Zook House” mobile app, it should reference “Historic Tours” mobile 

app,  and (2), corrected that both the targeted app launch time and Kitchen walk are in 

May, not October. 

 

Thereafter, the HPC unanimously approved, 5-0 (2 absent) the minutes. 

   

Public Hearing – Certificate of Appropriateness 

Case HPC-06-2017 – 418 S. Park Avenue – Request for Certificate of 

Appropriateness to Demolish the Existing Home and construct a new home in the 

Robbins Park Historic District.  

 

The applicant presented to the HPC, the current condition of the house at 418 S. Park 

Avenue. It was explained that it does not have any historical value, is in bad shape and 

needs to be demolished. The applicant also reviewed that she spoke with several neighbors, 

who are in support of the request. Several HPC members were familiar with the house and 

agreed with the applicant. A discussion about the detached (3rd car) garage and streetscape 

view determined it would be not inappropriate.    

 

Please refer to Attachment 1, for the transcript for Public Hearing Case HPC-06-

2017  

 

A motion to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness was unanimously approved 5-0, (2 

absent) as submitted. 

 

 

 

 

  Approved 



Historic Preservation Commission 

October 11, 2017 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness in the Historic Downtown District  

Case HPC-07-2017 –– 52 S. Washington St., –  Green Goddess Boutique – Certificate 

of Appropriateness for a new front entrance plan at the 1st floor retail business in 

the Historic Downtown District. 

  

The applicant presented to the HPC, the current condition of the commercial building in 

historic downtown district and the plan to construct a new front façade with elements to 

match the surrounding buildings and features.  

 

A color rendition of the proposed store front was projected via PowerPoint presentation and 

described by the applicant representative. The door to the store entrance would be relocated 

front the center of the building (as it was previous to the accident) to the right side of the 

building.  An HPC Commissioner asked why the relocation of the centered door to the right 

side of the building. It was reviewed that the proposed recessed door on the right side of the 

building is likely the original location of the store entry door when the building was 

constructed and would be a better match with the other buildings on the block. The center 

front door entrance was modified at some point, explained by the architect of record, who 

recused himself from voting. The proposed door would look like a house door and be 

recessed so that it does not open on to the sidewalk.   

 

The applicant noted the knee wall in the proposed picture would appear more crème color 

and not bright white in reality and be constructed of brick, after an HPC Commissioner 

asked about the contrasting color on the PowerPoint slide. The applicant also stated the 

sign above the store would remain the same but be re-located to the center of the building.  

The sign is currently set off-center.  An HPC Commissioner added that the proposed new 

façade is consistent with the other building frontage on the block. 

 

There were no additional concerns by the HPC.     

 

A motion to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness was unanimously approved 4-0, (2 

absent, 1 abstained) as submitted. 

 

Discussion Items 

Schedule a Special HPC meeting  

 

The Chairman expressed that the HPC has wanted to hold a special meeting to discuss 

mission/scope and timing on HPC matters. After reviewing dates and times, the HPC set a 

tentative date and time for a special meeting on Monday, October 23, 2017, at 8:45 AM in 

the Village Hall large conference room to review the municipal code Title 14. It was 

requested that staff send to the HPC a PDF via email and a hardcopy of Title 14 (Historic 

Preservation). Staff has completed this. 

 

Adjournment 

 

Commissioner Bohnen asked for a motion to adjourn. The HPC unanimously agreed to 

adjourn at 6:42 PM. on October 11, 2017. 



Historic Preservation Commission 

October 11, 2017 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 Chan Yu,    ,  Village Planner 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )

                  )  ss:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

            BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

            HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

In the Matter of:          )

                           )

Case No. HPC-06-2017       )

418 South Park Avenue.     ) 

         REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony 

taken at the Certificate of Appropriateness 

Public Hearing of the above-entitled matter 

before the Hinsdale Historic Preservation 

Commission, at 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, 

Illinois, on the 11th day of October 2017, at 

the hour of 6:00 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. JOHN BOHNEN, Chairman;

         MR. FRANK GONZALEZ, Member; 

         MS. JANICE D'ARCO, Member; 

         MR. JIM PRISBY, Member; and

         MS. SHANNON WEINBERGER, Member.

Attachment 1 - 10.11.17 HPC Minutes
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2
     ALSO PRESENT: 1

     

         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner;2

         MS. JULIE LAUX, Applicant;3

         MR. PATRICK FORTELKA, Applicant's   4

             architect.  

______________________________________________5

6

 

              CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Case HPC-06-2017 7

418 South Park Avenue.  Will the applicants 8

please approach the podium and be sworn in.9

                  (WHEREUPON, Ms. Laux was   06:04:38PM 10

                   administered the oath.)11

MS. LAUX:  Julie Laux, L-a-u-x. 12

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Would you like to 13

explain to us what you have in mind for 418 14

South Park Avenue, please. 15

MS. LAUX:  Sure.  We would like to 16

teardown 418 South Park and construct a new 17

home.  I think you all have the plans for that.  18

The existing house is in a state of 19

disarray.  I sent some photos along with the 06:05:20PM 20

application.  I have some more now.  21

I bought the house in sort of an 22

3

unusual circumstance where I didn't have access 1

to the inside until after the closing.  Since 2

that time, I have gone inside.  Two feet of 3

drywall is cut in the basement.  There was 4

obviously water there and there's quite a bit of 5

mold.  It's in a pretty sorry state. 6

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Julie, are you 7

proposing to build a spec home here or is this a 8

custom home? 9

MS. LAUX:  So our typical rhythm, I 06:05:56PM 10

guess I don't really use those words is, I own 11

the lot right now, my company owns the lot J. 12

Jordan Homes, and we often start the house and 13

then we sell it some time during construction.  14

We don't usually complete a house so I don't 15

really use the word spec. 16

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  But you obviously 17

start building from a set of plans? 18

MS. LAUX:  That is correct. 19

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  So ultimately if 06:06:20PM 20

someone were to buy it midstream, it would most 21

likely follow the plans? 22

4

MS. LAUX:  It does.  Especially the 1

outside.  There's usually tweaks to the inside 2

but the exterior stays.  3

MR. PRISBY:  That was designed without 4

a specific owner attached to it? 5

MS. LAUX:  That is correct.   6

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Should we discuss it?  7

MS. LAUX:  I was going to mention one 8

other thing, John.  Sorry to interrupt. 9

I know it isn't really part of the 06:06:44PM 10

requirement, but I met with all the neighbors 11

both as a part of doing our visits for the 12

permit process but also I just so happen to know 13

most of the neighbors and I have emails from all 14

of them weighing in in support of a teardown and 15

a new construction, so if you would like to see 16

those.  17

One homeowner just to the west is 18

out of town, the Templetons, they are in Ireland 19

right now, but I have a text from them saying 06:07:12PM 20

they are in favor and I have met with them 21

previously as well.  So the other neighbors are 22

5

all in support of my plan.   1

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Who would like to 2

start?  3

MS. WEINBERGER:  I'll start.  I did not 4

go in the home, but just walking around the home 5

it's another one of these cases where we missed 6

it.  The house is already really rough and I'm 7

not sure anything historic is there and it's -- 8

yes, not a whole lot of historic there.  9

MS. D'ARCO:  I agree.  The house was on 06:08:06PM 10

the market for quite some time.  It was lucky to 11

get a buyer.  So I don't have any opposition to 12

a new home there. 13

MS. LAUX:  Thank you.  14

MR. PRISBY:  I went past the exterior 15

today, it was in disarray, but I didn't have a 16

chance to go inside. 17

MS. LAUX:  I have some photos of the 18

inside if you are interested.  19

MR. PRISBY:  No.  I think I could take 06:08:34PM 20

their word for it.  21

MS. D'ARCO:  The space is being cleared 22
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out already?   1

MS. LAUX:  Yes.  We took down some of 2

the trees.  Some of the trees were elms and they 3

were on their way out anyhow.  There hadn't been 4

a lot of landscaping maintenance done there in a 5

number of years so it needed to clear out.6

MS. D'ARCO:  I think a new home would 7

be great.  It's a little dreary right now, so a 8

new home will brighten up that corner. 9

MS. LAUX:  Thank you.   06:09:10PM 10

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Frank?  11

MR. GONZALEZ:  I have driven by it a 12

number of times.  It doesn't look appealing to 13

the block or the neighbors.  How far -- as I'm 14

looking, is the new home going to be more or 15

less on the same footprint? 16

MS. LAUX:  So right now the house is 17

out with the point of the L towards the 18

southwest corner and we sort of flipped the L 19

the other way so the point of the L would be 06:09:42PM 20

more towards the prominent corner, which I think 21

is a better look for the property anyhow.  22

7

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  We seem to be seeing 1

a lot of these detached third garages.  Is there 2

a big demand for this? 3

MS. LAUX:  So most people want at least 4

a three-car garage in our town and the house 5

becomes a little cumbersome when it's three 6

attached so it gives the house a little 7

breathing room to detach that third garage.   8

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  I guess my concern is 9

-- and I'd have to look at the streetscape -- 06:10:40PM 10

but next door is the French chateaux.  If I'm 11

driving down Park Street, am I going to be 12

bothered by that third garage there as it 13

pertains to the setback, the Trauscht's house? 14

MS. LAUX:  I don't think so.  We are 15

quite a bit higher than they are elevation wise 16

and they have a line of landscaping that comes 17

east to west, so there is landscaping blocking 18

the Trauscht's property from this property 19

that's on the Trauscht's, so it will stay as 06:11:18PM 20

long as that property remains with the 21

Trauschts.  That property is for sale as well.  22

8

They are one of my emails that have weighed in 1

for support. 2

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Would it be right 3

that this garage would be considerably forward 4

of the facade of the Trauscht's house? 5

MS. LAUX:  Yes.  6

MR. PRISBY:  The site plan says it's a 7

35-foot corner side yard setback along Park 8

Street.  Is that established as an average with 9

the Trauscht's house?  Do you know where they 06:11:56PM 10

are in relation to the property line? 11

MS. LAUX:  They are quite a bit further 12

back.  We actually before -- I have Pat Fortelka 13

here who is with Moment Design, my architect, so 14

maybe he can answer those better, but we did 15

check our setbacks with the village prior to 16

buying the property because corners are dicey 17

and so I know it's within the code.  18

MR. PRISBY:  Well, I'm sure it's within 19

the code.  It just gives me a mental picture on 06:12:22PM 20

where this house is in relation to the lot next 21

to it in terms of how far back off of Park 22

9

Street. 1

MS. LAUX:  It's like a hard question 2

because the street is also angling very much 3

towards the west.  So if the street went 4

straight, it would be a completely different 5

answer but the street is angling back.  6

MR. PRISBY:  I know there's a couple 7

over there that have crazy setbacks. 8

MS. LAUX:  Yes.  Especially this lot.9

MS. D'ARCO:  There's quite a bit of 06:12:50PM 10

distance between where the house currently is 11

and the Trauschts?  12

MS. LAUX:  Right.  The Trauschts have 13

quite a bit of property and a lot of frontage, 14

that's for sure.  They have no backyard which I 15

think is an issue for them.  16

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Used to. 17

MS. LAUX:  Yes.  Right.  But that ship 18

sailed. 19

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  I just kind of 06:13:16PM 20

visualize driving down Park Street if this 21

garage is hanging out like a moving pendant or 22
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something. 1

MS. LAUX:  I don't think so.  Pat, do 2

you want to weigh in?  3

                  (WHEREUPON, Mr. Fortelka was 4

                   administered the oath.)  5

MR. FORTELKA:  Patrick Fortelka.  The 6

question with the accessory structure, the 7

detached garage, you can see in the exterior 8

elevation -- sorry, mine are marked up.  I just 9

got our permit comments back. 06:13:58PM 10

We used two brick kind of wing 11

walls on either side to make a more homogenous 12

kind of a connection between the detached garage 13

and the house itself.  We were concerned with 14

the idea of it being an appendage itself.  It 15

will have matching material, matching garage 16

door.  So it really will go with the house.  If 17

code allowed it, we had hoped to put a gate 18

between those two structures that would really 19

kind of bring them together, make them feel as 06:14:28PM 20

one, but unfortunately the code doesn't allow 21

for that.  That said, the garage itself is quite 22

11

a bit lower than the house so it has a nice 1

rhythm, it kind of grows up to the corner. 2

MS. LAUX:  And we like that the space 3

between the accessory structure and the main 4

structure because some of the less attractive 5

parts of the house, the air-conditioners, et 6

cetera, are in that space so they are not 7

bothering the neighbors on the perimeter.  8

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Anybody else?  9

MR. PRISBY:  I think those are fair 06:15:02PM 10

points.  I like the screening off the air- 11

conditioners.  I do like the idea of not having 12

a wing of three cars coming out.  You see that a 13

lot. 14

MS. LAUX:  It's not that cute, right.15

MR. PRISBY:  My only concern on this is 16

when you drive north on Park Street because of 17

how that road jogs around and because of where 18

the Trauscht's house is located, I can't kind of 19

picture it completely here.  06:15:28PM 20

If I'm all the way down at Sixth 21

Street, Seventh Street and I'm looking north 22

12

down Park Street, am I going to see the side of 1

this one-car garage?  2

MS. LAUX:  It's stepping way back.3

MR. PRISBY:  The road jogs out.4

MS. LAUX:  Well, it jogs out sort of 5

north of there.  So it's jogging back, I think, 6

it's jogging back west as you get to the south 7

end of the property.  8

MR. PRISBY:  I'm looking at our general 9

zoning map here.  So I'm just looking at if my 06:16:00PM 10

property is here, right, the Trauscht's house is 11

over here.  (Indicating.) 12

MS. LAUX:  You drew your circle way too 13

far.  It's way up here.  14

MR. PRISBY:  That's what I'm wondering 15

if I'm seeing this as I come down here it's the 16

side of the one-car garage. 17

MS. LAUX:  You will not.  There's a 18

line of landscaping.  Let me just check my 19

photos and see if we have a photo.  06:16:38PM 20

MR. PRISBY:  That would be very helpful 21

for me.  That's just a concern that I had when I 22

13

saw this.  I wouldn't be that opposed to where 1

it is if there's something that would improve 2

that elevation.  That's something that you are 3

driving from a few blocks away and all I see is 4

the side of a one-car brick detached garage as 5

my focus piece, I have issue with that.  I 6

didn't drive by there with that kind of thought 7

in mind. 8

MS. LAUX:  That's looking a little bit 9

south of the house now and so the garage would 06:17:14PM 10

be kind of here.  (Indicating.)  11

MR. PRISBY:  Chan, can you show that 12

from the south looking north?   13

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  There you go, north 14

on Park.  15

MR. PRISBY:  I see the vegetation 16

which, by the way, thank you for taking down. 17

MS. LAUX:  Yes.  But a lot of that, 18

interestingly, once we sort of cleared our 19

property, there is a nice line of vegetation on 06:18:12PM 20

the Trauscht's property that feels very much 21

like a blocker.  That's what I was trying to see 22
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if I had a photo that shows that.  1

MR. PRISBY:  The black box there just 2

to the left of that there's some kind of tree or 3

vegetation there. 4

MS. LAUX:  There's some great poplar 5

trees there too that help.  6

MR. PRISBY:  It looks like a red roof 7

forward of that.  8

MS. LAUX:  We are 39 off the parkway.9

MR. PRISBY:  See where this house is in 06:18:58PM 10

relation to that?  (Indicating.)11

MS. LAUX:  I have a topo right here.12

              (Discussion had off the record.)13

MR. PRISBY:  I don't have an issue.  14

It's far enough back, there's enough vegetation 15

in between that I'm not staring at the green 16

monster. 17

MS. LAUX:  Thank you.  18

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Let the record show 19

that we had a discussion about the positioning 06:23:38PM 20

of the third garage and I think everybody is 21

satisfied that it will not be a problem as far 22

15

as the streetscape. 1

MS. LAUX:  Thank you.  2

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Are there any other 3

comments or questions that we have?  4

MS. D'ARCO:  I was just going to ask 5

about timing. 6

MS. LAUX:  So I'd like to get started 7

as soon as possible.  We got our comments back 8

from the village like a week ago and so we 9

should be back in for our revision this week.  06:24:10PM 10

I'm anxious to get started; it doesn't look very 11

good, and the winter is coming so the sooner the 12

better for me.  The day I get a permit, the day 13

the fencing goes up and I'm ready to rock so I'm 14

all set up.  15

MS. WEINBERGER:  This is red brick? 16

MS. LAUX:  It's going to be probably an 17

acid-washed brick.  There's a product called 18

ROMABIO that we like.  Let me show you just two 19

photos.  Obviously this isn't the house but just 06:24:42PM 20

to give you some concept.  Can you see it from 21

there?  22

16

MR. FORTELKA:  It's a lime wash, 1

actually, that is better than paint and let's a 2

little bit of the brick come through, very 3

historic look to it. 4

MS. LAUX:  And whether it's an antique 5

brick or not, something definitely textural not 6

really flat.  Something very natural looking, 7

which is almost always what we do.  8

MR. GONZALEZ:  With regards to the 9

present home, are you going to do anything with 06:25:18PM 10

reclaiming anything from the home?  11

MS. LAUX:  I have scoured the place for 12

anything to reclaim and so far all I have come 13

up with is the flagstone.  There's quite a bit 14

of flagstone on the property in the walks and so 15

we are going to reclaim that.  I can't find 16

anything else to save.  17

MR. GONZALEZ:  How old is the house?18

MS. LAUX:  I should know that, but my 19

guess is the '50s. 06:25:42PM 20

MR. GONZALEZ:  I was just thinking of 21

the timber what kind of wood they were using.22

17

MR. PRISBY:  '52. 1

MS. LAUX:  No.  There's just nothing.  2

And I did meet with the deconstruction people to 3

see if that was an option.  It's just not. 4

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Okay.  So we seem to 5

be pretty much in concert here.  We will be 6

looking for a motion.  The motion can be either 7

a motion to approve it as submitted, or you can 8

have your approval conditioned by conditions 9

where you meet with Julie and Patrick one more 06:26:28PM 10

time before they go and break ground.  11

MR. PRISBY:  Well, I stated numerous 12

times in these hearings that I won't do it with 13

conditions.  I'm interested in the special 14

meeting getting in front of this.  They 15

submitted, they are in for permit, they got 16

their comments back, they are ready to go.  17

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  So why don't you make 18

a motion that we approve this as submitted?  19

MR. GONZALEZ:  There's not going to be 06:26:54PM 20

any deviation from the facade of what we see 21

here; correct?  22
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MS. LAUX:  I can't say any because 1

there's always minor modifications.  I mean, 2

maybe the door is not herringbone.  I don't have 3

any intentions of making any modifications from 4

what I have presented.  5

MR. GONZALEZ:  All right.  6

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  May I have a motion, 7

please?  8

MR. PRISBY:  I make a motion to approve 9

as submitted. 06:27:20PM 10

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Second, please?11

MS. WEINBERGER:  I'll second.  12

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  All in favor?13

(All aye.)14

Your application is approved. 15

MS. LAUX:  Thank you very much.     16

                  (WHICH, were all of the    17

                   proceedings had, evidence 18

                   offered or received in the 19

                   above entitled cause.) 20

21

22

19
STATE OF ILLINOIS )1

                  )  ss:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )2

              I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified 3

Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the 4

County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby 5

certify that previous to the commencement of the 6

examination and testimony of the various 7

witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to 8

testify the truth in relation to the matters 9

pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by 10

said witnesses was reduced to writing by means 11

of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into 12

typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a 13

true, correct and complete transcript of my 14

shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.15

              IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have 16

hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 17

seal this 30th day of October, A.D. 2017.  18

19

                       _________________________20

                       KATHLEEN W. BONO,

                       C.S.R. No. 84-142321

22
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third  [4] - 7:2, 7:8, 

7:13, 14:21
three  [3] - 7:5, 7:6, 

11:13
three -car  [1] - 7:5
timber  [1] - 16:22
timing  [1] - 15:6
today  [1] - 5:16
together  [1] - 10:20
took  [1] - 6:2
topo  [1] - 14:12
towards  [3] - 6:18, 

6:21, 9:4
town  [2] - 4:19, 7:5
transcribed  [1] - 

19:12
transcript  [1] - 19:14
Trauscht 's [8] - 7:14, 

7:19, 7:20, 8:5, 8:10, 
11:19, 12:11, 13:21

Trauschts  [3] - 7:22, 
9:12, 9:13

tree  [1] - 14:3
trees  [3] - 6:3, 14:6
true  [1] - 19:14
truth  [1] - 19:9
trying  [1] - 13:22
tweaks  [1] - 4:2
two  [4] - 3:3, 10:11, 

10:19, 15:19
typewritten  [1] - 

19:13
typical  [1] - 3:10

U

ultimately  [1] - 3:20
unfortunately  [1] - 

10:21
unusual  [1] - 3:1
up  [7] - 6:9, 10:9, 

11:2, 12:14, 15:14, 
15:15, 16:14

V

various  [1] - 19:7
vegetation  [4] - 

13:16, 13:20, 14:4, 
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14:15
Village  [1] - 2:2
VILLAGE  [1] - 1:3
village  [2] - 8:16, 

15:9
visits  [1] - 4:12
visualize  [1] - 9:21

W

walking  [1] - 5:5
walks  [1] - 16:15
walls  [1] - 10:12
wash  [1] - 16:1
washed  [1] - 15:18
water  [1] - 3:5
week  [2] - 15:9, 

15:10
weigh  [1] - 10:3
weighed  [1] - 8:1
weighing  [1] - 4:15
WEINBERGER  [4] - 

1:21, 5:4, 15:16, 
18:12

west  [4] - 4:18, 7:18, 
9:4, 12:7

WHEREOF  [1] - 
19:16

WHEREUPON  [2] - 
2:10, 10:4

WHICH  [1] - 18:17
whole  [1] - 5:9
wing  [2] - 10:11, 

11:13
winter  [1] - 15:12
wise  [1] - 7:16
witnesses  [2] - 19:8, 

19:11
wondering  [1] - 

12:15
wood  [1] - 16:22
word  [2] - 3:16, 5:21
words  [1] - 3:11
writing  [1] - 19:11

Y

yard  [1] - 8:8
years  [1] - 6:6
YU  [1] - 2:2

Z

zoning  [1] - 12:10
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   November 8, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  107 S. Park Avenue – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness to Demolish a Home 

in the Robbins Park Historic District to Construct a New Home – H-08-2017 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from the homeowner, Teresa Liu, and requesting 

approval for a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish an existing home in the Robbins Park Historic 

District to construct a new house at 107 S. Park Avenue. Per the Village Code, no permits shall be issued 

for demolition of any structure located in a designated historic district without the rendering of a final 

decision by the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) on an application for a Certificate of 

Appropriateness.  

Request and Analysis 

The subject property is located on a corner lot in the Robbins Park Historic District. The existing home 

was constructed in 1940 in a French Eclectic style.  The applicant would like to seek the right to obtain a 

demolition permit to construct a new Code compliant single family house (attached). The subject 

property is located in the R-1 Single Family Residential District and borders the same to the north, east, 

south and west. Per the submitted site plan, it is a legal nonconforming R-1 lot that is 12,137 SF in area. 

The existing home, per the National Register of Historic Places, is a contributing structure to the Robbins 

Park Historic District. 

Process 

Pursuant to Title 14, Section 14-5-1: (B) Historic District: No alteration shall be allowed to, and no 

permits shall be issued for, the alteration, demolition, signage, or any other physical modifications of the 

exterior architectural appearance of any structure, building, site, or area located in a designated historic 

district without the rendering of a final decision by the HPC on an application for a certificate of 

appropriateness. The final decision of the commission shall be advisory only. 

The Title 14, Section 14-5-2 (A) General Standards and (B) Design Standards to review can be found on 

Attachment 4. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness and Exhibits (packet) 
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Robbins Park Historic District Map 
Attachment 4 -  Title 14, Section 14-5-2: Criteria (A) and (B) 
Attachment 5 – National Register of Historic Places Sheet for the subject property (highlighted) 
 
 
 



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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Attachment 4        CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 

14-5-2: CRITERIA: 
 
All applications for a certificate of appropriateness shall conform to the applicable standards in this 
section. 

A. General Standards: 

1. Alterations that do not affect any essential architectural or historic features of a structure or building 
as viewed from a public or private street ordinarily should be permitted. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a structure, building, or site and its environment 
should not be destroyed. No alteration or demolition of any historic material or distinctive 
architectural feature should be permitted except when necessary to assure an economically viable 
use of a site. 

3. All structures, buildings, sites, and areas should be recognized as products of their own time. 
Alterations that have no historical basis and that seek to create an earlier appearance than the true 
age of the property are discouraged. 

4. Changes that may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a structure, building, or site and its environment. These changes may have acquired 
significance in their own right, and this significance should be recognized and respected when 
dealing with a specific architectural period. 

5. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a structure, 
building, site, or area should ordinarily be maintained and preserved. 

6. Deteriorated architectural features should be repaired rather than replaced, whenever possible. In 
the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 
composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing 
architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by 
historic, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the availability of 
different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

7. The surface cleaning of structures and buildings should be undertaken with the gentlest means 
possible. Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the structures and buildings 
should be avoided. 

8. New structures or buildings, or alterations to sites should not be discouraged when such structures 
or alterations do not destroy significant historical or architectural features and are compatible with 
the size, scale, color, material, and character of the site, neighborhood, or environment. 

9. Whenever possible, new structures or buildings, or alterations to the existing conditions of sites 
should be done in such a manner that, if such new structures or alterations were to be removed in 
the future, the essential form and integrity of the original structure, building, site, or area would be 
unimpaired. 

10. Any permitted alteration or demolition should promote the purposes of this Title and general welfare 
of the Village and its residents. 
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11. Demolition should not be permitted if a structure, building, or site is economically viable in its 
present condition or could be economically viable after completion of appropriate alterations, even if 
demolition would permit a more profitable use of such site. 

B. Design Standards: 

1. Height: The height of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the height of the original 
landmark. The height of a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after any proposed 
alteration or construction within an historic district should be compatible with the style and character 
of the structure or building and with surrounding structures and buildings in an historic district. 

2. Relationship Between Mass And Open Space: The relationship between a landmark and adjacent 
open spaces after its alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. 
The relationship between a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship between surrounding structures, buildings 
and adjacent open spaces within such historic district. 

3. Relationship Among Height, Width And Scale: The relationship among the height, width, and scale of 
a landmark after alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. The 
relationship among height, width, and scale of a structure or building after an alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship among height, width, and scale of 
surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

4. Directional Expression: The directional expressions of a landmark after alteration, whether its vertical 
or horizontal positioning, should be compatible with the directional expression of the original 
landmark. The directional expression of a structure or building after alteration within an historic 
district should be compatible with the directional expression of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

5. Roof Shape: The roof shape of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the roof shape 
of the original landmark. The roof shape of a structure, building, or object after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the roof shape of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

6. Architectural Details, General Designs, Materials, Textures, And Colors: The architectural details, 
general design, materials, textures, and colors of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of the original landmark. 
The architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a structure or building 
after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the architectural details, general 
design, materials, textures, and colors of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic 
district. 

7. Landscape And Appurtenances: The landscape and appurtenances, including without limitation 
signs, fences, accessory structures, and pavings, of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the landscape and appurtenances of the original landmark. The landscape and appurtenances 
of a structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the 
landscape and appurtenances of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

8. Construction: New construction in an historic district should be compatible with the architectural 
styles, design standards and streetscapes within such historic districts. 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   November 8, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  504 S. Oak Street – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness to Demolish a Home in 

the Robbins Park Historic District to Construct a New Home – H-09-2017 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Bayit Builders, LLC, on behalf of the property 

owner, Avra Properties, requesting approval for a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish an existing 

home in the Robbins Park Historic District to construct a new house at 504 S. Oak Street. Per the Village 

Code, no permits shall be issued for demolition of any structure located in a designated historic district 

without the rendering of a final decision by the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) on an 

application for a Certificate of Appropriateness.  

Request and Analysis 

The subject property is located on an interior lot in the Robbins Park Historic District. The existing home 

was constructed in 1940, with no particular historic category per the National Register of Historic Places, 

and a noncontributing structure to the Robbins Park Historic District. The applicant would like to seek 

the right to obtain a demolition permit to construct a new Code compliant single family house 

(attached). The subject property is located in the R-1 Single Family Residential District and borders the 

same to the north, east, south and west. Per the submitted site plan, it is a legal nonconforming R-1 lot 

that is 25,894 SF in area.  

Process 

Pursuant to Title 14, Section 14-5-1: (B) Historic District: No alteration shall be allowed to, and no 

permits shall be issued for, the alteration, demolition, signage, or any other physical modifications of the 

exterior architectural appearance of any structure, building, site, or area located in a designated historic 

district without the rendering of a final decision by the HPC on an application for a certificate of 

appropriateness. The final decision of the commission shall be advisory only. 

The Title 14, Section 14-5-2 (A) General Standards and (B) Design Standards to review can be found on 

Attachment 4. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Application for Certificate of Appropriateness and Exhibits (packet) 
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Robbins Park Historic District Map 
Attachment 4 -  Title 14, Section 14-5-2: Criteria (A) and (B) 
Attachment 5 – National Register of Historic Places Sheet for the subject property (highlighted) 
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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Attachment 4        CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 

14-5-2: CRITERIA: 
 
All applications for a certificate of appropriateness shall conform to the applicable standards in this 
section. 

A. General Standards: 

1. Alterations that do not affect any essential architectural or historic features of a structure or building 
as viewed from a public or private street ordinarily should be permitted. 

2. The distinguishing original qualities or character of a structure, building, or site and its environment 
should not be destroyed. No alteration or demolition of any historic material or distinctive 
architectural feature should be permitted except when necessary to assure an economically viable 
use of a site. 

3. All structures, buildings, sites, and areas should be recognized as products of their own time. 
Alterations that have no historical basis and that seek to create an earlier appearance than the true 
age of the property are discouraged. 

4. Changes that may have taken place in the course of time are evidence of the history and 
development of a structure, building, or site and its environment. These changes may have acquired 
significance in their own right, and this significance should be recognized and respected when 
dealing with a specific architectural period. 

5. Distinctive stylistic features or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a structure, 
building, site, or area should ordinarily be maintained and preserved. 

6. Deteriorated architectural features should be repaired rather than replaced, whenever possible. In 
the event replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in 
composition, design, color, texture, and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing 
architectural features should be based on accurate duplications of features, substantiated by 
historic, physical, or pictorial evidence rather than on conjectural designs or the availability of 
different architectural elements from other buildings or structures. 

7. The surface cleaning of structures and buildings should be undertaken with the gentlest means 
possible. Sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will damage the structures and buildings 
should be avoided. 

8. New structures or buildings, or alterations to sites should not be discouraged when such structures 
or alterations do not destroy significant historical or architectural features and are compatible with 
the size, scale, color, material, and character of the site, neighborhood, or environment. 

9. Whenever possible, new structures or buildings, or alterations to the existing conditions of sites 
should be done in such a manner that, if such new structures or alterations were to be removed in 
the future, the essential form and integrity of the original structure, building, site, or area would be 
unimpaired. 

10. Any permitted alteration or demolition should promote the purposes of this Title and general welfare 
of the Village and its residents. 
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11. Demolition should not be permitted if a structure, building, or site is economically viable in its 
present condition or could be economically viable after completion of appropriate alterations, even if 
demolition would permit a more profitable use of such site. 

B. Design Standards: 

1. Height: The height of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the height of the original 
landmark. The height of a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after any proposed 
alteration or construction within an historic district should be compatible with the style and character 
of the structure or building and with surrounding structures and buildings in an historic district. 

2. Relationship Between Mass And Open Space: The relationship between a landmark and adjacent 
open spaces after its alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. 
The relationship between a structure or building and adjacent open spaces after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship between surrounding structures, buildings 
and adjacent open spaces within such historic district. 

3. Relationship Among Height, Width And Scale: The relationship among the height, width, and scale of 
a landmark after alteration should be compatible with such relationship prior to such alteration. The 
relationship among height, width, and scale of a structure or building after an alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the relationship among height, width, and scale of 
surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

4. Directional Expression: The directional expressions of a landmark after alteration, whether its vertical 
or horizontal positioning, should be compatible with the directional expression of the original 
landmark. The directional expression of a structure or building after alteration within an historic 
district should be compatible with the directional expression of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

5. Roof Shape: The roof shape of a landmark after alteration should be compatible with the roof shape 
of the original landmark. The roof shape of a structure, building, or object after alteration within an 
historic district should be compatible with the roof shape of surrounding structures and buildings 
within such historic district. 

6. Architectural Details, General Designs, Materials, Textures, And Colors: The architectural details, 
general design, materials, textures, and colors of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of the original landmark. 
The architectural details, general design, materials, textures, and colors of a structure or building 
after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the architectural details, general 
design, materials, textures, and colors of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic 
district. 

7. Landscape And Appurtenances: The landscape and appurtenances, including without limitation 
signs, fences, accessory structures, and pavings, of a landmark after alteration should be compatible 
with the landscape and appurtenances of the original landmark. The landscape and appurtenances 
of a structure or building after alteration within an historic district should be compatible with the 
landscape and appurtenances of surrounding structures and buildings within such historic district. 

8. Construction: New construction in an historic district should be compatible with the architectural 
styles, design standards and streetscapes within such historic districts. 
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Wednesday, November 1, 2017 

Hinsdale Historical Society and Historic Preservation Committee’s partnership.   
Mobile Tours App: Historical Tourist: Hinsdale Edition 
October 2017 Update 
 

The ad hoc app workgroup at the Society continue to make substantial progress on the app 
testing and development.   

The Downtown Tour has: complete information uploaded, been developed into the Round 1 
prototype and undergone its first full review.  Next steps are to work with the MYTOURS vendor 
to address the minor cosmetic issues in the app presentation (eg. extra white space in some 
areas), identify a few new photographs about the: society, zook home and studio, volunteering 
and donating and then testing the touring functionality.  

The South and North Tours are nearly ready for submission to the vendor to “publish” those 
tours in the app prototype. The narratives have been written, reviewed, and edited. Photographs 
have been chosen and captioned. Next steps are to: load the photos, submit the tour 
information to MYTOURS to publish in the app, review these tour features and layout in the app 
prototype, identify and rectify any cosmetic changes and test the touring functionality.  

As a reminder, we welcome the help of any interested Commissioners who would like to be 
involved in the launch planning or testing the tour functionality of the prototype this fall and 
winter.  Please send Society board member, Karen Dunn Lopez and email if you are interested 
at kdunnlopz@gmail.com.  
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